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e history of the Nottingham Lots has been the subject of

many books and papers because it is a history that spans over

three hundred ten years. It goes back to the colonies and the be-
ginning of our country.

In 1701, the third Lord Baltimore, Charles

Calvert, was the proprietor of the Colony

of Maryland. His kinsman George Tal-

bot, Surveyor General of Maryland, was

given a tract of land of about 32,000

acres in exchange for services rendered

to the colony. The tract of land known as

the “Susquehanna Manor” touched on the

Susquehanna River and the headwaters of the Chesapeake Bay.

While Lord Baltimore was involved in boundary disputes with the

Colony of Virginia, George Talbot was involved in the murder of

Christopher Rousby, a collector of the King’s taxes in Maryland.

Talbot was eventually sent back to England for trial. He never re-

turned to Maryland. Thus the ownership of his land and its exact
boundaries fell into question.

William Penn, a Quaker and the propri-

etor of the Colony of Pennsylvania knew

three things: 1) the land in question was

fertile ground and could extend the

southern boundary of his colony to in-

clude the headwaters of the Chesapeake

Bay, 2) the ownership and boundaries of the

land known as the Susquehanna Manor were in question, and
3) at this time period England was in turmoil and the House of
Baltimore was not in favor with the English Crown. Thus Lord
Baltimore was not in a position to defend the colony of Maryland
from such encroachments.

William Penn decided to act on what he knew and granted 18,000
acres of this unsettled land to fifteen of his Quaker followers.
Penn first set aside and dedicated 40 acres of land to the Quaker
“Society of Friends” forever. The land was to be used for public
worship, right of burial and the privilege of education. Penn then
divided the remaining acreage into lots of approximately five hun-
dred acres each, resulting in a total of thirty-seven lots. Each lot
was given a number from one to thirty-seven. He then set aside
five of these lots for himself. He called them “Proprietary Lots”.
These lots were later purchased by families in whole or in part
for his own investment. Many of the Scotch-Irish that established
West Nottingham Church settled on these Proprietary Lots. The
remaining lot numbers were then mixed together and the origi-
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nal fifteen prospective owners made their selection by the draw-
ing of lots. The drawing of lots, in turn, showed no favor among
these families and thus was fair. As most of these fifteen families
would own more than one lot, the procedure allowed few fami-
lies to have lots that were close together. Some of the original
fifteen families did not actually come to live on their lots, but did
support and invest with Penn.

Along with the hardships of living in unsettled territory, the lots
settled by these families were to be in dispute until the Mason-
Dixon Line was surveyed in the late 1760s. At that time only 1,300
acres would remain in Chester County, Pennsylvania. The remain-
ing 16,700 acres would be in Cecil County, Maryland. In 1788, the
State of Pennsylvania and State of Maryland re-issued title of
these lots to the owners having proof of purchase from Penn.

Dates differin historical records, however around 1706, the Quak-
ers living in Nottingham built the first Meeting House made from
logs. It was replaced around 1724 with the two-story brick side of
the building you see today. Due to a fire the brick side was gut-
ted. In 1752, the brick side was restored and the two-story stone
side was added, thus it was doubled in size. The expanded brick-
and-stone building was probably the largest building in the area
at that time. In 1810, the Meeting House was again damaged by
fire and restored. In 1962, major renovation of this historic Meet-
ing House was completed under the supervision of Edward Plum-
stead, with the permission and assistance of its Quaker owners.
The Meeting land continues to serve the purpose for which it was
dedicated. Meeting is held at “The Brick” —as it is often called—
on the first and third Sunday of the month.

In 1781, during the colonial fight for freedom, the French General
Lafayette led his troops through the Nottingham Lots, to cross
the Susquehanna River en route to Baltimore. The troops were
encamped in the then thirty acres of woods surrounding the
Brick Meeting House. The Meeting House served as a hospital
during the Revolutionary War. A memorial stone for the soldiers
that died here is in the adjacent cemetery.

Two other Meeting Houses were built on the Nottingham Lots.

The West Nottingham Friends Meeting House on Harrisville Road
west of the town of Rising Sun, was built on Lot #20. The first
meeting house on this site was a log structure erected in 1727. In
1811t was replaced by the present one-story brick building.

The Colora Friends Meeting House in Colora was built on Notting-
ham Lot #18 in 1841. It was built on land set aside by William War-
ing. Meeting is held here once a year.
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The Caretakers

H: 1701, William Penn granted 40 acres to his Quaker followers
and their successors forever as a place for worship, burial and
education. Penn set aside five “Proprietary Lots” for himself,
and the remaining lot numbers were then mixed together. Most
of the prospective buyers were to get two lots, which they drew
from the mix in turn. This process, though fair, allowed few fami-
lies to have lots close together.

THANK Y0u T0 OUR THIRTY-SEVEN CARETAKERS

Lot #1 Robert Palmer Family
Lot #2 Wayne Scully Family Evans Choice

Lot #3 Richard Fox Family Richardsmere Farm
Lot #4 Donald Balderston Family ~ Balderston Orchards
Lot #5 John Boyd Family The Boyd Farm

Lot #6 C. Dale Lofthouse

Lot #7 James Monger Family
Lot #8 Margaret Sprout

Lot #9 Jean Holbrook Family
Lot#10  Terry Greenleaf

Lot #11 Scott Brown Family

Lot #12 Lucas Family

Lot #13 Leonard Wilson Family
Lot#14  George McCreary Family
Lot #15 George McCreary Family
Lot#6  William Fell Family

Lot #17 C.W. Brown Family
Lot#8  Richard Broomell Family
Lot#19  Pete Ladas Family
Lot#20  Earl Rakes Family
Lot#21  Joseph Bennett, Jr.
Lot#22  Bill Kilby Family

Lot#23  Lynda Lieske Family
Lot#24  Sam Orr Family

Willowdale Farm

Ag Industrial, Inc.
Fox Knoll Farm
Lucas Farm

Mt. Rocky Farm
Thankless Lane Farm
Thankless Lane Farm
Fell Family Farm
Klarwin Farm

Four Acres Farm

Kilbys, Inc. Farm
Ponderosa Farm
Orr’s Acres Farm

Lot#25  Joseph Mahoney Family Wick Wyn Farm
Lot#26  Fred Orr Family Triple O Farm
Lot#27  David Wherry Family Cedar Farm
Lot#28  John Scarbath Family Old Cedar Farm
Lot#29  Clifford England Family Bethel Farm

Lot#30  East Nottingham Meeting ~ “The Brick”

Lot #31 David Reisler Family Richland Farm
Lot#32  Robert Moore Family The Moore’s Farm
Lot#33  Grove Miller Family Pleasant View Farm
Lot#34  Helen Brown Family
Lot#35  David Holsten Family
Lot#36  Phil Johnson Family
Lot#37  Ray Hilaman Family

The Onion Bed
Walnut Springs



Lot #25
ORIGINAL OWNER:
William Brown
75.11% Agriculture

Lot #72
ORIGINAL OWNER:
Andrew Job
68.86% Agriculture

Lot #31
ORIGINAL OWNERS:
Robt. Dutton & Saml. Littler
40.77% Agriculture

Lot #20
ORIGINAL OWNER:
Meeting House Common
57.62% Agriculture

Lot #29
ORIGINAL OWNERS:
Robt. Dutton & Saml. Littler
62.92% Agriculture

Lot #28
ORIGINAL OWNER:
William Brown
72.027% Agriculture

Lot #47
ORIGINAL OWNER:
James Brown
57.47% Agriculture

Lot #24
ORIGINAL OWNER:
James Cooper
65.26% Agriculture

Lot #2)
ORIGINAL OWNER:
Penn “Proprietary” Lot
70.96% Agriculture

Lot #24
ORIGINAL OWNER:
Cornelius Empson

68.78% Agriculture

Lot #54
ORIGINAL OWNER:
Randell Janney
54.92% Agriculture

Lot #57
ORIGINAL OWNER:
Andrew Job
50.84% Agriculture

Lot #54
ORIGINAL OWNER:
John Beale
44.59% Agriculture

Lot #57
ORIGINAL OWNER:
John Beale
45.71% Agriculture

Lot #1
ORIGINAL OWNER:
Unknown
42.58% Agriculture

Lot #Z
ORIGINAL OWNER:
John Guest
42.64% Agriculture

)

Lot #2
ORIGINAL OWNER:
John Guest
33.40% Agriculture
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Lot #25
ORIGINAL OWNER:
William Brown
56.14% Agriculture

Lot #2Z
ORIGINAL OWNER:
Ebenezer Empson

54.40% Agriculture

Lot #21
ORIGINAL OWNER:
Penn “Proprietary” Lot
40.48% Agriculture

Lot #20
ORIGINAL OWNER:
John Richardson
53.59% Agriculture

Lot #17
ORIGINAL OWNER:
Henry Reynolds
31.46% Agriculture

Lot #18
ORIGINAL OWNER:
Edward Beeson
50.05% Agriculture

Lot #17
ORIGINAL OWNER:
John Churchman
59.13% Agriculture

Lot #1b
ORIGINAL OWNER:
John Churchman
30.85% Agriculture

Lot #1/

Randell Janney
55.73% Agriculture

ORIGINAL OWNER:

43.93% Agriculture

ORIGINAL OWNER:

Lot #
ORIGINAL OWNER:
Henry Reynolds
71.16% Agriculture

Lot #b
ORIGINAL OWNER:
John Richardson
51.20% Agriculture

Lot #7
ORIGINAL OWNER:
Penn “Proprietary” Lot
19.55% Agriculture

Lot #8
ORIGINAL OWNER:
Cornelius Empson

56.02% Agriculture

S Lot #1

x ORIGINAL OWNER:

Penn “Proprietary” Lot
55.68% Agriculture

Lot #10
ORIGINAL OWNER:
Ebenezer Empson

29.72% Agriculture

Lot #11
ORIGINAL OWNER:
Joel Bayley
40.21% Agriculture

Lot #1Z
ORIGINAL OWNER:
James Cooper
44.32% Agriculture

Lot #15
ORIGINAL OWNER:
Penn “Proprietary” Lot
52.04% Agriculture

Lot #14
ORIGINAL OWNER:
James Brown
15.53% Agriculture




